
 

              
 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

Date:  Monday, December 2, 2019            Time:  6:00 p.m.        Location:  100 East Broadway 

                                 Monmouth, Illinois 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
(All meetings are conducted according to Robert’s Rules of Order with a Parliamentarian present) 

 

     I.   CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

   II.  ROLL CALL 

 

  III.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

          A.  Approval of November 18, 2019 Council Meeting Minutes 

 

  IV.   PRESENTATION TO COUNCIL 

 A.  Presentations or Citizen Inquiries (all inquiries are limited to 3 minutes per City Ordinance)    

 B.  Consent Agenda (Items on Consent Agenda will not be discussed unless a request is made 
                             to remove an item for discussion) 

         1.  Approval of Bills 

   

    V.   COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

  A.  Building and Zoning November Report – Director Clark 

  B.  Woodard and Curran October Report – Director Jackson 

  C.  Approval of Façade Grant – J.B.’s Woodshed, 110 E. 1st Ave. for $15,650,00 

  D.  Approval of Façade Grant – United Way, 87 Public Square for $17,234.00 

  E.  Video Gaming Discussion 

  

  VI.   RESOLUTIONS 

A.  19-010, Joint Animal Control Contract 

 

VII.  OTHER BUSINESS 

 

VIII.  ADJOURNMENT 

























 

woodardcurran.com 
COMMITMENT & INTEGRITY DRIVE RESULTS 

 

 

 

Monthly 
Operating  
REPORT 

Monmouth, Illinois 
 
Department of 
Public Works 
 
October 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

Monmouth, IL Department of Public Works 1 Woodard & Curran 
Monthly Operating Report October 2019 
 
 
   

 

 

 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION  

Executive Summary .......................................................................................................................................  

1. HEALTH AND SAFETY/STAFF ..............................................................................................................  

2. WASTEWATER TREATMENT ...............................................................................................................  

4. REVENUE COLLECTION .......................................................................................................................  

5. ESTIMATED ANNUAL COST .................................................................................................................  

6. MAINTENANCE/REPAIR ACTIVITIES ...................................................................................................  

7.     CAPITAL PROJECTS .............................................................................................................................  

 

LIST OF TABLES 
TABLE  

Table 1-1: Water Quality vs. NPDES Permit Limits ..............................................................................................  

Table 2-1: Monthly Chemical Usage for Ion Exchange Softening ........................................................................  

Table 3-1: Revenue Collection .............................................................................................................................  

Table 4-1: Estimated Annual Budget – Year 7 .....................................................................................................  

 

 

 



 

 

 

Monmouth, IL Department of Public Works ES-1 Woodard & Curran 
Monthly Operating Report October 2019 
 
   

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

 

 

 

The October Public Works monthly report provides an overview of the month’s activities and statistical 

data including safety training, wastewater treatment effluent quality, water production, billing and 

collection statistics for municipal services, maintenance activities, maintenance and repair costs vs. monthly 

thresholds, water treatment chemical costs, overall project cost and performance to annual budget. 

 

Laverdiere completed boring a new 12” water main under Highway 34 near the intersection of 34/67.  The 

existing main had failed under the highway.  The project was completed, and the new section put into 

service in mid-November. 

 

Crews located the 8” transite main at the intersection of Harlem and North Main street.  A new 8” valve 

was installed to shut this down from the south.  We will be locating it on the north end out by the highway 

to install another valve to completely abandon this in place.  There are no known connections on this water 

main. 

 

CSO Phase 2 pre-construction meeting was held this week.  Laverdiere outlined their schedule, staging, 

and construction activities for the project. 

 

City received the construction permit to replace the East Euclid Avenue water main from North 1st Street 

to North 6th Street.  This area qualified for a CDBG grant, the application was submitted in August and we 

are awaiting word on if the grant application was successful. 

 

Continue discussions with Smithfield on a new service agreement that includes financing for the North Pre-

Treatment Plant improvements.  The project was approved by IEPA via receipt of the construction permit 

from them.  

 

Enterprise annual review of the vehicle lease program revealed that the City can trade in the 5 leased pickup 

trucks for 5 new leased pickup trucks and lower the monthly lease payment since the value of low mileage 

used pickup trucks is very high right now.  This has always been the upside to a fleet lease type arrangement. 

 

Leaf pickup seems to be going relatively well considering the early snow, well below normal temperatures, 

and all the water main issues that the crew has been dealing with the past couple of weeks. 

 

 

Feel free to stop by the office or give me a call, 309-734-4026 if you have any questions or comments. 

 

Regards, Andy 



 

 

 

  

1. HEALTH AND SAFETY/STAFF 

Staff annual review of the ladder safety program.  There were no safety incidents or near misses in 

October.        

2.  WASTEWATER TREATMENT 

The Consolidated WWTP treated and discharged 167 million gallons of treated wastewater in the 

month of October.  There were 5 combined sewer overflow events in October. The weather station at 

the plant reported 3.2” of rain and 2” of snow during the month. The Consolidated Plant continues to 

produce excellent effluent quality.  The table below outlines the water quality vs. NPDES permit 

limits.   

 
Table 2-1: Water Quality vs. NPDES Permit Limits 

 Monthly Average Permit Limit 

Flow (MGD) 5.37 4.62 

Ammonia N mg/l <0.1 1.5 

CBOD5 mg/l 2 10 

Total Phos 0.9 1 

Chlorides mg/l 285 500 

Suspended Solids mg/l 8 12 

   

3.  WATER TREATMENT 

The water treatment plants produced 96 million gallons of finished water in October.  Finished water quality 

met all standards per the Clean Water Act for drinking water.  The table below outlines the chemical usage 

for ion exchange softening for the month. 

 

Table 3-1: Monthly Chemical Usage for Ion Exchange Softening 

 Daily Average Monthly Total 

Treated Water to System  3.1 MG 96 MG 

Poly Phosphate Usage-lbs. 103 lbs. 3,178 lbs. 

Salt Usage -– tons 4.9 151 tons 

Chlorine Usage - lbs. 127 3,936 lbs. 

 



 

 

 

  

4. REVENUE COLLECTION  

 
Table 4-1: FY to date 

The table below outlines the revenue collected through the month of October from the Municipal Services 

billings. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                           PAYMENT TOTALS 2019-2020 FISCAL YEAR

MONTH WATER SEWER LANDFILL RECYCLE GARBAGE

YARD 

WASTE FARM BONDS

FARM 

SURCHARGE OTHER PENALTY

MAY '19 $235,181.40 $188,120.25 $21,961.32 $15,732.33 $37,318.29 $2,897.84 $34,065.81 $859.87 $0.00 $2,203.24

JUNE $225,472.04 $177,206.63 $19,476.30 $13,982.09 $33,639.41 $2,631.79 $34,065.81 $13.10 $0.00 $2,169.86

JULY $240,553.38 $192,622.77 $21,958.77 $15,851.53 $37,198.41 $2,848.18 $34,065.81 $0.00 $0.00 $2,408.74

AUGUST $255,470.78 $191,991.94 $20,100.75 $14,469.05 $34,643.95 $2,615.38 $34,065.82 $636.02 $210.72 $2,548.52

SEPTEMBER $277,700.33 $195,780.51 $20,963.32 $15,151.20 $35,186.44 $2,707.15 $34,065.81 $124.08 $72.96 $3,483.54

OCTOBER $265,164.97 $198,678.82 $21,014.47 $15,119.63 $35,432.96 $2,757.47 $34,065.81 $2,439.01 $0.00 $3,027.51

NOVEMBER $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

DECEMBER $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

JANUARY $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

FEBRUARY $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

MARCH $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

APRIL '20 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

YEAR TO DATE $1,499,542.90 $1,144,400.92 $125,474.93 $90,305.83 $213,419.46 $16,457.81 $204,394.87 $4,072.08 $283.68 $15,841.41

TOTAL REVENUE $3,314,193.89



 

 

 

  

5. TOTAL ANNUAL COST  

 

Table 5-1:  Annual Budget – Year 7 

 

 

 

Budget Category  Month 

Budget 

Month 

Actual 

YTD Budget YTD Actual Annual 

Budget 

over(under) 

Labor (D.L. + FB) $129,524 $127,731 $777,145 $738,501 $1,554,290  ($38,645) 

Utilities $3,217 $2,196 $19,304 $15,639 $38,608  ($3,665) 

Chemicals Costs $25,587 $15,833 $153,520 $152,636 $307,040 ($884) 

Maintenance\Repair  $29,573 $17,038 $177,435 $238,401 $354,870  $60,966  

Sludge Disposal Costs $833 $0 $5,000 $0 $10,000  ($5,000) 

Lab Supplies\Equip $3,526 $4,270 $21,153 $27,312 $42,306  $6,159  

Office Supplies $1,524 $1,530 $9,146 $8,254 $18,291  ($892) 

Miscellaneous Expenses $4,113 $3,635 $24,676 $27,054 $49,351  $2,379  

Other Operating Costs $12,687 $11,785 $76,119 $105,189 $152,238  $29,070  

Overhead (G.A.) $29,247 $28,842 $175,484 $166,758 $350,969  ($8,726) 

Subtotal Year 7  
$239,830 $212,860 $1,438,982  $1,479,744 $2,877,963  $40,762  

Fixed Fee Year 7 $17,268 $15,326 $103,607 $106,542 $207,213  $2,935  

Total 
$257,098  $228,186  $1,542,588  $1,586,285  $3,085,177  $43,697  



 

 

 

  

6. MAINTENANCE/REPAIR ACTIVITIES  

 

A SUMMARY OF MAINTENANCE & REPAIR ACTIVITIES: 

 

Water/Street Facilities 

Maintenance staff completed 65 routine/preventative and 26 corrective work orders for the water plants, 

distribution system, sewer collection system, and fleet in October. 132 requests for service were responded 

to by service personnel. 147 requests for City utility locates from the J.U.L.I.E. call center were completed.  

Water distribution system and sewer collection system items: 

 

• Replaced 9 water meters  

• Repaired water main 900 East Euclid 

• Repaired water main 700 South 8th  

• Repaired water main 700 North 9th 

• Repaired water main 100 South 10th 

• Repaired water main 300 East Girard – 8’ of 12” pipe replaced  

• Repaired water main 400 East Euclid 

• Repaired water main 500 West 8th  

• Repaired water main 1200 North 11th 

• Repaired water main 1100 West Harlem 

• Replaced curb stop 814 South Main 

• Repaired curb stop 312 East Euclid 

• Repaired curb stop 1124 South Main 

• Replaced chlorine analyzer at South Water Plant 

 

Wastewater Facilities 

Maintenance staff performed 132 preventative work orders and 6 corrective work orders at the Consolidated 

Plant and North Pretreatment Plant. 

• Replaced 60 Amp breaker on flare controls, sump pump breaker and outlet 

• Installed and aligned rebuilt 200 HP blower motor (new bearings) 

• Replaced level sensor at Smithfield lift station 

• Installed rebuild kit on the air relief valve at the raw pump station 

Street/Grounds/Right of Way/Fleet 

• Various tree removal and trimming, pothole patching and utility repair patching 

• Scheduled vehicle service work (lube, oil, filters) 

• Installed stop signs at South 11th & East 3rd 

• Installed stop signs at North 3rd and East Franklin 

• Installed new intake and 120’ of 4” drain tile on the east side of the 300 block of North 11th Street 

• Replaced starter on the cemetery S10 

• Repaired electrical issue and hydraulic lift cable on T14 



 

 

 

  

7.   Capital Projects 

 

1. CSO Phase 2 bidding and award for the project. 

 

 

2. Received construction permit to replace the water main on East Euclid Avenue, awaiting 

word from CDBG if the City was successful in the grant application to fund this project. 

 

 

3. Information and data gathering to prepare preliminary engineering report, (PER), for 

USDA loan application on the downtown sewer replacement project. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

  

7.  CAPITAL PROJECTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 











CITY OF MONMOUTH 

  COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
    

 

 

 

Date:   Monday, November 18, 2019            Time:  6:00 p.m.       Location: 100 East Broadway 

                                              Monmouth, Illinois 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

   

 

   I.   CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

         Mayor Rod Davies called the meeting to order in the Council Chambers at City Hall, 100 

East Broadway at 6:00 p.m. and led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

 

  II.   ROLL CALL 

         City Clerk Susan S. Trevor called the roll and those answering   Present were: Aldermen 

Justin Thomas, Tony Cook, Alderwoman Twomey, Aldermen Brian Daw, Robert Wells, Juan 

Pinedo, Dan Heatherly and Alderwoman Mary Kelly  Also Present:  Mayor Rod Davies, City 

Administrator Lew Steinbrecher, City Clerk Susan S. Trevor, City Attorney Marcum Spears, 

MFD Chief Casey Rexroat, MPD Chief Joe Switzer, Woodard and Curran Director Andy 

Jackson, IT Director Ken Helms and Building and Zoning Director Joe Clark.   

 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

       A.  Approval of the November 4, 2019 Council Meeting Minutes     

   It was moved by Alderman Cook and seconded by Alderwoman Twomey to 

approve the November 4, 2019 Council Meeting Minutes.   AYE:  Aldermen Thomas, Cook, 

Alderwoman Twomey, Aldermen Wells, Pinedo, Heatherly and Alderwoman Kelly    PASS:  

Alderman Daw   NAY:  none   MOTION CARRIED. 

 IV. PRESENTATION TO THE COUNCIL 

       A.  Presentations or Citizen Inquiries (all inquiries are limited to 3 minutes per City Ordinance) 

     Mike Sheid, General Manager of Midwest Pet Foods, thanked Building and Zoning 

Director Joe Clark for all his assistance with Mr. Sheid’s purchase of a downtown building.  He 

also wanted the Council to know that his employees are pleased with the return of Cottage 

Urgent Care to the Monmouth Crossing Strip Mall and he also feels that there is a strong 

entrepreneurial presence in Monmouth at this time.   

       C.  Consent Agenda 

     1.  Approval of Bills 

          It was moved by Alderman Heatherly and seconded by Alderman Wells to 

approve the payment of the bills as presented.   AYE:  Aldermen Cook, Alderwoman 

Twomey, Aldermen Daw, Wells, Pinedo, Heatherly, Alderwoman Kelly and Alderman Thomas   

NAY:  none    MOTION CARRIED. 

 

 

 

 



  V.  COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

        A.  MFD October Report – Chief Rexroat 

 There were 103 calls in October and that includes the airport fire.  The department 

did a good job of putting it out with MABAS assistance.  He also thanked the 

Mayor and Alderman Daw for their help at the fire.  There was a minor water issue 

which was handled by setting up a water shuttle system.   After the airport fire 

incident, Roger Blackman from Public Works, came to the station with maps of the 

City water infrastructure and some ideas as to how to better handle large draws on 

the system at future fire incidents. 

 October was Fire Prevention Month and Firefighter Dan Chard did a very good job 

with promoting it and setting up school visits. 

 The department is working on re-doing the memorial at the South Station for 

Dennis Olsen who died in the line of duty.   

 The Halloween event at the North Fire Station went very well with the Evening 

Lions Club asking to be a part of it by serving hot dogs and chips to everyone. 

 B.  MPD October Report – Chief Switzer 

• October was a busy month with Safety talks, and the Halloween event at the Fire 

Station. 

• The department now has two certified CPR Trainers – Officer Kramer and Julie 

Richardson.  They will be conducting courses in the department in the near future. 

• The department has been studying the new cannabis law that will go in to effect on 

January 1, 2020 to develop procedures that are in accordance with the new law. 

 C.  Approval of WWTP Phase 2 Bid 

    Public Works Director Jackson stated that the City had received two bids on the WWTP 

Phase 2 project. Needham Excavating from Walcott, Iowa submitted the lowest bid of  

$1,073,580.00; however, they did not meet the safety requirements for the pump.  Laverdiere 

Construction, Inc. from Macomb, Illinois submitted the second bid of $1,192,750.00.  Their bid 

met all the safety requirements.  Mr. Jackson said the City has the two following options: 

     1.  Approve Laverdiere as the lowest bidder. 

               2.  Require Needham Excavating to amend their pump specifications within the bid 

they submitted to meet the safety requirements for the pump.  After discussion, based on the 

City’s past experiences with faulty designed pumps, the Council chose Option 1.  It was moved 

by Alderman Wells and seconded by Alderman Heatherly to approve Laverdiere 

Construction’s bid of $1,192,750.00 as the lowest bid and award them the contract for the 

WWTP Phase 2.  AYE:  Aldermen Daw, Wells, Pinedo, Heatherly, Alderwoman Kelly, 

Aldermen Thomas, Cook and Alderwoman Twomey   NAY:  none   MOTION CARRIED.                                                 

VI.   RESOLUTIONS 

 A.  19-009, Adoption of the 353 Court, LLC Downtown Report 

       Administrator Steinbrecher reviewed the three main focuses of the 353 Court 

Downtown Report as Building, Businesses and Branding and said that the group had asked for a 

commitment of the City through a resolution of support for their revitalization of the downtown 

plan through the plan’s three main focuses.  He also said that there is a draft of the plan on the 

City’s website.   It was moved by Alderman Heatherly and seconded by Alderwoman Kelly 

to approve Resolution 19-009 for the adoption of the 353 Court Downtown Report.   AYE:  

Aldermen Daw, Wells, Pinedo, Heatherly, Alderwoman Kelly, Aldermen Thomas, Cook and 

Alderwoman Twomey   NAY:  none   MOTION CARRIED. 



VII.   ORDINANCES 

  A.  1st Reading 

        1.  19-033, Tax Levy (2020-2021) 

             It was moved by Alderman Wells and seconded by Alderman Pinedo to 

approve Ordinance 19-033, Tax Levy for 2020-2021 as presented.   AYE:   Aldermen Wells, 

Pinedo, Heatherly, Alderwoman Kelly, Alderman Cook, Alderwoman Twomey and Alderman 

Daw.   ABSTAIN:  Alderman Thomas   NAY:  none   MOTION CARRIED. 

      2.  19-034, Abating Tax on G.O.B. Series 2010 A & B 

        3.  19-035, Partially Abating Tax on G.O.B. Series 2010C 

        4.  19-036, Abating Tax on G.O.B. Series 2014 

        5.  19-037, Abating Tax on G.O.B. Series 2015B 

 It was moved by Alderman Heatherly and seconded by Alderman Cook to approve 

Ordinance 19-034 through 19-037 collectively.   AYE:  Aldermen Pinedo, Heatherly, 

Alderwoman Kelly, Aldermen Thomas, Cook and Alderwoman Twomey, Aldermen Daw and 

Wells   NAY:  none   MOTION CARRIED.                                                

VIII.  OTHER BUSINESS 

  Alderman Wells requested again that the Council come to a decision with regards to 

passing a video gaming ordinance that will establish regulations for video gaming in the City.  

Administrator Steinbrecher asked again for input from the Aldermen to be able to draft an 

ordinance for regulating video gaming in the City.  

   IX.  ADJOURNMENT 

     It was moved by Alderman Heatherly and seconded by Alderman Wells to adjourn 

the November 18, 2019 meeting at 6:25 p.m.   MOTION CARRIED by unanimous voice 

vote. 

  

 

 

_______________________________ ___________________________________ 

                Mayor Rod Davies                          City Clerk Susan S. Trevor 

 

 

 


	December 2, 2019 Council Meeting Agenda
	Resolution 19-010, Joint Animal Control Contract
	United Way's Facade Grant Application
	J.B.'s Woodshed Facade Grant Application
	Woodard and Curran October Report
	Building and Zoning November Report
	November 18, 2019 Council Meeting Minutes



